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UNITED  STATES DISTRICT  COURT  
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT  OF NEW YORK 

VAGUELY QUALIFIED PRODUCTIONS 
LLC, 
 

Plaintiff, 
 

-v.- 
 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY; THOMAS F. 
PRENDERGAST, in his official capacity as 
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the 
MTA; and JEFFREY B. ROSEN, in his 
official capacity as the Director of the MTA 
Real Estate Department, 
 

Defendants. 
 

 
 
 
15 Civ. 04952 (UA) 
 
AMENDED COMPLAINT  [42 U.S.C. ¤ 
1983] 
 
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

 
Plaintiff Vaguely Qualified Productions LLC (ÒVQPÓ), by and through its undersigned 

counsel, brings this Complaint against Defendants Metropolitan Transportation Authority (the 

ÒMTAÓ), Thomas F. Prendergast, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the MTA, and 

Jeffrey B. Rosen, Director of the MTA Real Estate Department (collectively, ÒDefendantsÓ), 

their employees, agents, and successors in office, and in support thereof allege the following 

upon information and belief: 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This case is a civil rights action brought under the First and Fourteenth 

Amendments to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983, challenging DefendantsÕ 

refusal and rejection of VQPÕs right to engage in protected speech in both a designated public 

forum and a limited public forum created by Defendants. 
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2. VQP seeks to post six advertisements (the ÒAdvertisementsÓ) in the MTA subway 

system to promote VQPÕs feature film, ÒThe Muslims Are Coming!Ó and the underlying thematic 

message of that filmÑthat American Muslims are ordinary people.  

3. After an unnecessary and unreasonable four-month delay, on or around March 25, 

2015, Defendants approved VQPÕs Advertisements for display in the MTA subway system, 

which, at the time, was inarguably a designated public forum (the ÒMTA ApprovalÓ).  The 

Advertisements were scheduled to run in the MTA subway system, beginning April 27, 2015, 

pursuant to a contract between Plaintiff and the MTA. Despite this approval, VQPÕs 

Advertisements were never displayed in the MTA subway system (the ÒMTA RefusalÓ). 

4. On April 29, 2015, more than five months after VQP submitted the 

Advertisements and more than a month after the MTA Approval, Defendants adopted a new 

advertising policy (the ÒRevised PolicyÓ) categorizing its property as a Òlimited public forum,Ó 

permitting certain categories of advertisements (e.g., Òcommercial advertisingÓ), and prohibiting 

certain categories of advertisements (e.g., advertisements that are Òpolitical in natureÓ). 

5. In apparent reliance on the Revised Policy, on May 6, 2015Ñmore than one 

month after the MTA Approval and just over a week after the Advertisements were scheduled 

for display in the subway systemÑDefendants rejected VQPÕs Advertisements.  DefendantsÕ 

proffered rationale for rejecting the Advertisements was their decision that the Advertisements 

constituted ÒpoliticalÓ advertising prohibited under the MTAÕs Revised Policy (the ÒMTA 

RejectionÓ). 

6. The MTA Rejection was improper because VQPÕs Advertisements are 

Òcommercial advertisingÓ under the Revised Policy and do not, in fact, fit within that policyÕs 

definition of Òprohibited advertising.Ó   
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7. Once Defendants sought to open a limited public forum, any restrictions on 

speech that fall within a designated category for which Defendants have opened the forum must 

be justified by a compelling government interest and narrowly drawn to serve that interest.  

DefendantsÕ restriction on the Advertisements here is neither. 

8. VQP seeks a declaration that the MTA Refusal violates the Free Speech Clause of 

the First Amendment to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983 as set forth in the 

Complaint; a declaration that the MTA Rejection also violates the Free Speech Clause of the 

First Amendment to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983 as set forth in the 

Complaint; a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining the MTA Refusal and requiring 

display of the Advertisements for 28 daysÑthe amount of time originally contracted to between 

VQP and Outfront Media and approved by the MTA; a preliminary and permanent injunction 

enjoining the MTA Rejection and requiring Defendants to display the Advertisements on MTA 

property because the Advertisements comply with the MTAÕs Revised Policy; and nominal 

damages for the loss of VQPÕs constitutional rights.  VQP also seeks an award of reasonable 

costs of litigation, including attorneysÕ fees and expenses, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1988 and 

other applicable law. 

JURISDICTION  AND VENUE 

9. This is a civil action under 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983 seeking damages and injunctive 

relief against Defendants for committing acts, under color of law, which subject VQP to the 

deprivation of rights secured under the Constitution and laws of the United States.   

10. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. 

¤¤ 1331 and 1343 because this action arises under the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. 

¤ 1983 and 1988.  The declaratory and injunctive relief sought is authorized by 28 U.S.C. 
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¤¤ 2201 and 2202, by Rules 57 and 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and by the legal 

and equitable powers of this Court.     

11. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. ¤ 1391(b)(2) because a substantial part of the 

events or omissions giving rise to VQPÕs claims occurred in the Southern District of New York. 

PLAINTIFF 

12. Plaintiff VQP is a for-profit limited liability company formed under the laws of 

the state of New York.  VQP is an award-winning and critically acclaimed video production 

company that creates viral videos, television and web shows, and narrative and documentary 

feature films.  VQPÕs mission is to create Òsmart, insightful, and comedic social justice media.Ó 

DEFENDANTS 

13. Defendant MTA is a New York state public authority and public benefit 

corporation, created by New York state law.  Together with its affiliated operating agencies, the 

MTA provides mass transportation services in the New York City metropolitan area. 

14. As a governmental agency, the MTA must comply with the First and Fourteenth 

Amendments to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983.  For purposes of claims 

arising under 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983, the MTA is a governmental actor. 

15. At all relevant times herein, Defendant Thomas F. Prendergast was and is the 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the MTA.  In his capacity as Chairman and Chief 

Executive Officer, Defendant Prendergast, on behalf of the MTA Board of Directors, was and is 

responsible for adopting, creating, and enforcing the policies and practices of the MTA, 

including the MTAÕs Revised Policy, which was used to reject VQPÕs Advertisements, as set 

forth in this Complaint.  He is sued in his official capacity only. 

16. At all relevant times herein, Defendant Jeffrey B. Rosen was and is the Director 

of the MTA Real Estate Department.  In his capacity as Director of the MTA Real Estate 
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Department, Defendant Rosen was the final decision maker responsible for rejecting VQPÕs 

Advertisements and thus restricting VQPÕs speech as set forth in this Complaint.  He is sued in 

his official capacity only. 

STATEMENT  OF FACTS 

A. Vaguely Qualified Productions Created a Series of Advertisements 
Promoting Its Commercial Feature Film and the Underlying Theme of the 
FilmÑthat American Muslims are Ordinary People . 

17. In 2013, VQP produced ÒThe Muslims Are Coming!,Ó a feature film documentary 

that follows a band of American Muslim comedians as they perform stand-up comedy and 

interact with residents in big cities, small towns, and rural villages.  Underlying the filmÕs 

comedic content was the message that American Muslims are ordinary people.  The film 

received critical praise when it was released in theaters in 2013, and is currently available for 

purchase to consumers through various online mediums including Netflix, Amazon, iTunes, and 

Xbox.  The message of ÒThe Muslims Are Coming!Ó is consistent with that of other works 

produced by VQP, as VQPÕs commercial content specializes in comedic, social justice media 

content. 

18. In September 2014, after the American Freedom Defense Initiative (ÒAFDIÓ) 

announced that it had launched a series of advertisements, VQP launched a campaign to 

purchase MTA advertising space that would promote the same message depicted in ÒThe 

Muslims Are Coming!ÓÑnamely, that American Muslims are ordinary people.  Dean 

Obeidallah, co-director of ÒThe Muslims Are Coming!,Ó described the campaign as Òthe next 

stepÓ to the feature film.  He further described the campaign as a reaction to AFDIÕs 

advertisements displayed in the MTA system.   

19. Through the campaign, VQP raised the funds necessary to purchase advertising 

space in the MTA system. In October 2014, having raised the funds necessary to purchase 
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advertising space, VQP prepared the Advertisements for proposed display in the MTA system.  

The posters feature satirical and tongue-in-cheek statements that depict American Muslims as 

having the same basic views and experiences as other Americans and promote ÒThe Muslims 

Are Coming!Ó while emphasizing the central theme of the feature filmÑthat American Muslims 

are normal, everyday Americans.  Beneath the humorous content, each poster promotes the VQP 

brand and refers the reader to www.themuslimsarecoming.com, the website that promotes ÒThe 

Muslims Are Coming!Ó and through which VQP offers the film and related merchandise for sale.   

20. VQPÕs Advertisements (after modifications  required by MTA) appear as follows: 
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21. True and correct copies of the Advertisements are also attached to this Complaint 

as Exhibits A through F and incorporated by reference herein. 

22. VQPÕs Advertisements convey the same non-political theme as is conveyed in the 

film, ÒThe Muslims Are Coming!ÓÑthat American Muslims are ordinary people.   

B. After More than Four Months of Unnecessary Delay, Defendants Approved 
VQPÕs Advertisements for Display in the MTA Subway System, But Still Did 
Not Run Them. 

23. The MTA, through its authorized advertising agent, OUTFRONT Media Inc. 

(formerly CBS Outdoor Americas Inc.) (ÒOutfront MediaÓ) leases advertising space on its 

vehicles and transportation stations.  At all times described herein, Outfront Media was acting as 

an authorized agent for Defendants. 

24. VQP first submitted the Advertisements for approval to Defendants on or around 

November 10, 2014, through Outfront Media.  Dean Obeidallah and Negin Farsad, Director of 

VQP, corresponded with Outfront Media on behalf of VQP. 

25. By November 17, 2014, Defendants received the initially submitted artwork for 

the Advertisements.  Those advertisements were wholly consistent with the MTA Advertising 

Standards in force at that time.1  Nevertheless, on December 8, 2014, the MTA, through its 

authorized agent, Outfront Media, required that VQP remove the word ÒpenisÓ from a joke in 

one Advertisement and resubmit the artwork.  VQP complied with the requirement, and on 

December 11, 2014, resubmitted two alternate versions of the Advertisement, including one that 

substituted the word ÒgenitalsÓ and one that omitted the joke in its entirety.  Defendants received 

the re-submitted artwork by December 16, 2014. 

                                                
1 MTA Advertising Standards as amended by MTA Board, Sept. 27, 2012. (Ò2012 MTA 

Advertising Standards.Ó)  A true and correct copy of the 2012 MTA Advertising Standards is 
attached to this Complaint as Exhibit G and incorporated by reference herein. 
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26. After nearly one full month of additional delay, on January 15, 2015, Defendants 

required that VQP re-submit the Advertisements without the joke, ÒPlease draw your penis 

here,Ó apparently not recognizing that VQP had done so a month prior.  VQP re-submitted the 

Advertisements on January 21, 2015. 

27. Without citing any violation of the 2012 MTA Advertising Standards, on 

February 3, 2015, Outfront Media conveyed to VQP that Defendants had requested more 

information about VQP itself, and Outfront Media sent Defendants an Internet link purporting to 

show all the companies that VQP had worked with. 

28. On February 6, 2015, almost three months after the Advertisements were initially 

submitted, Outfront Media conveyed to VQP that the Advertisements were approved by 

Defendants, with two exceptions.  First, the phrase Òstepping in poopÓ needed to be removed 

from a poster that listed things Muslims hate, even though that phrase did not violate the 2012 

MTA Advertising Standards.  Second, VQP was told that Defendants would not accept a poster 

that said, ÒThose terrorists are all Muslims nutjobs.Ó  Five days later, on February 11, 2015, 

Outfront Media informed VQP that the rejection of ÒnutjobsÓ was on account of the font type 

used for that work; VQP redesigned and resubmitted those two posters on February 28, 2015. 

29. After waiting for what Outfront Media noted was an unusually long time for 

approval of any advertisements, on March 25, 2015, after a delay of almost another monthÑand 

more than four months after VQP initially submitted the AdvertisementsÑVQP learned through 

the New York City Public AdvocateÕs Office that all but the two revised posters were approved 

by Defendants.  VQP reached out to Outfront Media, which initially responded that it was still 

waiting for approval for the two revised posters, and, later that same day, Outfront Media 

conveyed that Defendants had, in fact, approved the Advertisements.  
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30. An initial contract was approved by the MTA on or about April 3, 2015, to 

display the Advertisements throughout the New York City subway system from April 13, 2015, 

through May 10, 2015.  A revised contract provided for the Advertisements to be displayed in 

the MTA system for 28 days from April 27, 2015 through May 24, 2015.  On or around April 14, 

2015, VQP returned the executed advertising contract to Outfront Media to post 144 posters of 

the Advertisements in 140 MTA subway stations across New York City.  A true and correct copy 

of the executed contract (the ÒAdvertising ContractÓ) is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit H 

and incorporated herein by reference. 

31. Based on the MTA Approval, VQP entered into an agreement to print the posters 

in accordance with MTA specifications and paid printing costs of $3,762.72.  VQP also hired a 

public relations firmÑa $2,000 costÑand launched a public relations campaign.   

32. On or around April 22, 2015, Outfront Media informed VQP that it would 

endeavor to post some copies of the Advertisements by April 27, 2015, but that in any event the 

Advertisements would be posted in the MTA subway system by April 28, 2015.   

33. On April 28, 2015, Outfront Media informed VQP that the posters were being 

prepped for display that day.    

34. Despite the MTA Approval and Outfront MediaÕs assurances, the Advertisements 

were not posted in the MTA subway system on April 28, 2015, nor any day after.  On May 1, 

2015, Outfront Media informed VQP that someone from Defendant MTA would call them. 

C. After Months of De Facto Rejection, Defendants Formally Reject VQPÕs 
Advertisements Under the MTAÕs Revised Policy. 

35. On or around April 29, 2015, Defendants issued a revised advertising policy, the 

Revised Policy, to Òestablish uniform, reasonable, and viewpoint-neutral standards for the 

displaying of advertisingÓ and Òconvert the MTAÕs Property from a designated public forum into 
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a limited public forum by excluding advertising of a political nature.Ó  A true and correct copy of 

the Revised Policy is attached to this Complaint as Exhibit I and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

36. Among other things, the Revised Policy prohibits advertisements that are 

Òpolitical in nature, including but not limited to advertisements that . . . [p]rominently or 

predominately advocate or express a political message, including but not limited to an opinion, 

position, or viewpoint regarding disputed economic, political, moral, religious or social issues or 

related matters, or support for or opposition to disputed issues or causes.Ó 

37. The Revised Policy expressly allows commercial advertising, which it defines as 

Ò[p]aid advertisements that propose, promote, or solicit the sale, rent, lease, license, distribution, 

or availability of, or some other commercial transaction concerning, goods, products, services, or 

events for the advertiserÕs commercial or proprietary interest, or more generally promote an 

entity that engages in such activities.Ó 

38. On or around May 1, 2015, Defendants informed VQP via telephone that they 

would not permit display of the Advertisements in the MTA system. 

39. On or around May 6, 2015, VQP requested a decision in writing from Defendants. 

40. On or around May 6, 2015Ñmore than one month after the MTA ApprovalÑ

Defendant Rosen, on behalf of Defendants, issued a decision regarding VQPÕs Advertisements 

via email (the ÒFinal DeterminationÓ).  The Final Determination was emailed to VQP on May 7, 

2015, and reads in relevant part: 

Acting on a proposal that had been under consideration since 2012, the MTA 
Board on April 29, 2015, adopted a new MTA Advertising Policy, effective 
immediately. . . .  An article about the ÒMuslims are ComingÓ advertising 
campaign . . . described it as a response to a Òcampaign of hateful, anti-Muslim 
ads in the New York City bus and subway systemÓ sponsored by [AFDI], and an 
effort to make the Òhateful imagesÓ of the AFDI advertisements Òless culturally 
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acceptable.Ó . . . I have reviewed the six ÒMuslims are ComingÓ advertisement 
under the new MTA Advertising Policy and have concluded that they are within 
one of the categories of prohibited advertisements, Section IV.B.2, because they 
are political in nature. Taken together, the Muslims are Coming advertisements 
prominently or predominately advocates or expresses a political messageÑ
Vaguely Qualified ProductionÕs opinion, position, or viewpoint regarding a 
disputed political, moral, religious or social issue or related matters or its support 
for or opposition to disputed issues or causes. 

41. With these findings, Defendant Rosen, on behalf of Defendants, rejected the 

Advertisements. 

42. VQPÕs Advertisements do not Òprominently or predominatelyÓ advocate a 

political message.  The Advertisements promote a film with the simple message that American 

Muslims are ordinary people.  This message does not advocate or express an Òopinion, position, 

or viewpoint regarding disputed economic, political, moral, religious or social issues or related 

matters,Ó nor does it support or oppose a Òdisputed issue[] or cause[.]Ó 

43. Rather, the Advertisements proposed by VQP, a for-profit company, prominently 

advertise a central theme in the feature film, ÒThe Muslims Are Coming!Ó  Each advertisement 

includes the text, ÒFor More Visit: www.themuslimsarecoming.com,Ó encouraging viewers to 

visit a website featuring information about the film, a promotional video clip, and links to 

download the film from Amazon, iTunes, and Xbox.  VQPÕs Advertisements promote and solicit 

the sale of VQPÕs commercial productÑÒThe Muslims Are Coming!Ó  Because a central theme 

in the film is American Muslim comedians making their way through the United States, the 

Advertisements contain satirical and ironic statements that depict American Muslims as ordinary 

people.   

44. On or around July 8, 2015, Defendants issued a refund to VQP in the amount of 

$15,000Ñthe amount VQP had submitted to Defendants, via Outfront Media, to display their 

advertisements in the MTA subway system. 
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45. On or around July 9, 2015, Defendants issued a refund to VQP in the amount of 

$3,762.72Ñthe amount VQP had spent on printing the Advertisements. 

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Violation of the First Amendment Under 2012 MTA Advertising Standards) 

46. VQP hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations contained in 

the preceding paragraphs, as if set forth fully herein. 

47. Section 1983 of Title 42 of the U.S. Code provides that Ò[e]very person who, 

under color of any statute, ordinance, regulation, custom, or usage of any State . . . subjects, or 

causes to be subjected, any citizen of the United States or other person within the jurisdiction 

thereof to the deprivation of any rights, privileges, or immunities secured by the Constitution and 

laws, shall be liable to the party injured in an action at law, suit in equity, or other proper 

proceeding for redress[.]Ó  42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983. 

48. The First Amendment provides that ÒCongress shall make no law . . . abridging 

the freedom of speech.Ó  U.S. Const. amend. I. 

49. The First AmendmentÕs protection of the freedom of speech applies to the states 

through its incorporation into the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. 

50. Defendants violated VQPÕs constitutional rights by purposefully and 

unreasonably delaying the approval of VQPÕs Advertisements for four months.  This four-month 

delay in approving VQPÕs Advertisements was a de facto and unconstitutional act of prior 

restraint and a content-based rejection of the Advertisements. 

51. After this unconstitutional rejection of the Advertisements, on or around March 

25, 2015, Defendants approved VQPÕs Advertisements for display in the MTA subway system, 

the MTA Approval. 
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52. Despite the MTA Approval, Defendants again refused to post the Advertisements 

on the date specified under the Advertising Contract.  The refusal to post the Advertisements 

constituted an unconstitutional rejection of the Advertisements.   

53. On May 7, 2015Ñmore than a month after the MTA ApprovalÑDefendants 

informed VQP that its Advertisements were rejected because they did not comply with the 

MTAÕs Revised Policy.   

54. Defendants have deprived VQP of its right to engage in protected speech by 

refusing to display VQPÕs Advertisements for the 28-day period originally specified in the 

Advertising Contract between VQP and Outfront Media, and approved by the MTA, in violation 

of the Free Speech Clause of the First Amendment to the United States Constitution as applied to 

the states and their political subdivisions under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States 

Constitution and 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983. 

55. As a direct and proximate result of DefendantsÕ violation of the Free Speech 

Clause of the First Amendment to the United States Constitution, VQP has suffered irreparable 

harm, including the loss of their Constitutional rights, entitling them to declaratory and 

injunctive relief and nominal damages. 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Violation of the First Amendment Under The Revised Policy) 

56. VQP hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations contained in 

the preceding paragraphs, as if set forth fully herein. 

57. With its Revised Policy, Defendants seeks to convert the MTAÕs property from a 

designated public forum into a limited public forum. 
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58. When the government creates a limited public forum, the level of protection 

afforded to speech will depend on whether or not that speech falls within or outside of the 

designated category for which the government opened the forum. 

59. In a limited public forum, strict scrutiny is accorded to restrictions on speech that 

fall within the designated category for which the forum has been opened.  Restrictions on speech 

that fall outside that designated category must only be viewpoint neutral and reasonable. 

60. VQPÕs Advertisements fall within a designated category for which Defendants 

have opened the forum.  Specifically, VQPÕs Advertisements are Òcommercial advertising,Ó 

permitted under the Revised Policy, because, in a manner consistent with VQPÕs brand, the 

Advertisements ÒpromoteÓ and Òsolicit the saleÓ of VQPÕs product, ÒThe Muslims Are 

Coming!,Ó by promoting the underlying message of the filmÑthat American Muslims are 

ordinary people.  The Advertisements direct viewers to a website that promotes a commercial 

feature film produced by a for-profit company.  Therefore, the Advertisements fit within 

DefendantsÕ definition of Òcommercial advertisingÓ contained in the Revised Policy. 

61. VQPÕs Advertisements are not Òprohibited advertisingÓ under the Revised Policy 

because they are not Òpolitical in natureÓ and do not Òprominently or predominatelyÓ advocate a 

political message.  VQPÕs Advertisements, which promote a truism that American Muslims are 

ordinary people, do not advocate or express an Òopinion, position, or viewpoint regarding 

disputed economic, political, moral, religious or social issues or related matters,Ó nor do they 

support or oppose a Òdisputed issue[] or cause[.]Ó 

62. The MTA Rejection of VQPÕs AdvertisementsÑadvertisements that fall within a 

designated category for which Defendants have opened the forumÑis not justified by a 

compelling government interest and is not narrowly drawn to serve that interest. 
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63. By reason of the MTA Rejection, which includes DefendantsÕ erroneous 

interpretation of the Revised Policy, which was created, adopted, and enforced under color of 

state law, Defendants have deprived VQP of its right to engage in protected speech in a limited 

public forum in violation of the Free Speech Clause of the First Amendment to the United States 

Constitution as applied to the states and their political subdivisions under the Fourteenth 

Amendment to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. ¤ 1983. 

64. As a direct and proximate result of DefendantsÕ violation of the Free Speech 

Clause of the First Amendment to the United States Constitution, VQP has suffered irreparable 

harm, including the loss of their Constitutional rights, entitling them to declaratory and 

injunctive relief and nominal damages. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, VQP asks this Court: 

A) to declare that Defendants violated the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the 

United States Constitution as set forth in this Complaint; 

B) to preliminarily and permanently enjoin the MTA Refusal and require display of 

the Advertisements on MTA property for a consecutive period of no less than 28 daysÑthe 

amount of time specified in the Advertising Contract between VQP and Outfront Media and 

approved by the MTA;  

C) to preliminarily and permanently enjoin the MTA Rejection and require 

Defendants to display the Advertisements on MTA property because the Advertisements comply 

with the MTAÕs Revised Policy; 

D) to award VQP nominal damages for the loss of its constitutional rights as set forth 

in this Complaint; 
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E) to award VQP its reasonable attorneysÕ fees, costs, and expenses pursuant to 42 

U.S.C. ¤ 1988 and other applicable law; and 

F) to grant such other and further relief as is just and proper. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 38, Plaintiff Vaguely Qualified Productions, 

LLC hereby demands a jury trial. 
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Dated: July 16, 2015 
 New York, New York 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Elizabeth Morris 
Elizabeth Morris  
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP 
885 3rd Avenue 
New York, NY 10022 
Telephone: (212) 906-1200 
Facsimile: (212) 751-4864 
 
Glenn Katon  
Adil Haq (pro hac vice pending) 
Madihha Ahussain (pro hac vice pending) 
MUSLIM ADVOCATES 
P.O. Box 71080 
Oakland, CA 94612 
Telephone: (415) 692-1484 
Facsimile: (415) 765-1774 
 
Abid R. Qureshi (pro hac vice pending) 
Andrew P. Galdes (pro hac vice pending) 
Brigid T. Morris (pro hac vice pending) 
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP 
555 11th Street NW, Suite 1000 
Washington, DC 20004 
Telephone: (202) 637-2200 
Facsimile: (202) 627-2201 
 
Tanya Syed (pro hac vice pending) 
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP 
355 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 100 
Los Angeles, CA 90071 
Telephone: (213) 485-1234 
Facsimile: (213) 891-8763 
 
Yusuf Z. Zakir (pro hac vice pending) 
LATHAM & WATKINS LLP 
650 Town Center Drive, 20th Floor 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
Telephone: (714) 540-1235 
Facsimile: (714) 755-8290 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiff Vaguely Qualified 
Productions LLC 
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ADVERTADVERTISERISERAcct# 1097119
Vaguely Qualified Productions
141 East 3rd Street. #2H
New York, NY 10009
917-513-1976
Attn: Negin Farsad

ADVERTISER AGREEMENT - PRODUCTION INFORMATION ADDENDUMADVERTISER AGREEMENT - PRODUCTION INFORMATION ADDENDUMADVERTISER AGREEMENT - PRODUCTION INFORMATION ADDENDUM PAGE 2PAGE 2OF 3OF 3

CONTRACONTRACT NOCT NO.:.: 18958118958111 DATE:DATE: 04/09/15

ADVERTADVERTISER:ISER: VaguelVaguely Qualy Qualifiedified ProducProductionstions

SALESPSALESPERSONERSON:: Co Truong (981)

Copy must meCopy must meet Productioet Production specificatn specifications and beions and bereceived 10received 10working daworking days prior toys prior toeach adverteach advertising periising period.od.
THIS AGREEMENT AND THE COPY TO BE DISPLAYED HEREUNDER IS SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF OUTFRONT MEDIA'S
MARKET GENERAL MANAGER AND THE OWNER OF THE LOCATION AS APPLICABLE

MarketMarket MediaMedia/Loca/Location(tion(s)s) SizeSize
Copy DCopy Dueue

DateDate
ShippiShippingng
QuantiQuantityty ShippShipping Aing Addressddress ServiService AEce AE

Ext.Ext.
FabFab

Per SqPer SqFtFt
New York Subways One-Sheet Posters/System Wide 46"H X 30"W 04/13/15 288 OUTFRONT Media

49-29 Maspeth Ave
Maspeth, NY 11378
718-366-6180
Attn: Subway Division
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PAGE 3 OF 3PAGE 3 OF 3

OUTFRONT MEDIA TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ADVERTISING SERVICEOUTFRONT MEDIA TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ADVERTISING SERVICEOUTFRONT MEDIA TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF ADVERTISING SERVICE

1. As used1. As usedin this hein this herein, Companrein, Company shall mey shall mean OUTFRONan OUTFRONT Media anT Media and Advertiserd Advertiser shall mean ashall mean and be deemednd be deemedto include,to include, in additionin addition to Advertito Adverti ser, anyser, any
advertisingadvertising agency or aagency or any other ageny other agent or licent or licensee of Advnsee of Advertiser (coertiser (collectivelyllectively "Advertiser"Advertiser ").").

2. At least2. At leastten (10) woten (10) working daysrking days before thebefore theestimatedestimatedstart date,start date, Advertiser,Advertiser, at its soleat its soleexpense, shexpense, shall furnishall furnish and deliveand deliver to Companr to Company or to servy or to service pointsice points
designateddesignatedby Company,by Company,sufficient ssufficient supply of advupply of advertising copertising copy, in formy, in form and type spand type specified byecified byCompany aloCompany along with wring with wri tten noticetten notice to Companyto Companysetting fortsetting forthh
required porequired posting instrsting instructions. Ifuctions. If copy is notcopy is notso received,so received,a loss of sa loss of service mayervice mayoccur or addoccur or additional cositional costs may be chts may be charged by Coarged by Company althmpany although commercough commerciallyially
reasonablereasonableefforts wilefforts wil l be used tol be used topost copy apost copy as promptly as promptly as practicabls practicable after recee after receipt from Adipt from Ad vertiser. Ifvertiser. If AdvertiserAdvertiser requests exprequests expedited instaedited installation willation wi thin fivethin five
working dayworking days of receipts of receiptof late recof late received copyeived copy, a fee of n, a fee of not less thot less than $650 peran $650 perlocation willocation will be payabll be payable. In any ee. In any event, if copvent, if copy is not rey is not received in aceived in atimely mannetimely manner,r,
Company mayCompany mayuse subjectuse subjectlocations inlocations inany mannerany manner, without l, without l imiting Adveimiting Advertiser's lirtiser's li ability toability to pay for sucpay for such space prih space prior to postior to posting the lateng the latereceived creceived copy. If Copyopy. If Copy
is furnisheis furnished and delived and delivered as requred as required above aired above and such Copynd such Copyis not rejeis not rejected by Compcted by Company pursuanany pursuant to the tet to the terms hereofrms hereof(i) the Copy(i) the Copyshall be posshall be posted, and (ited, and (ii) in thei) in the
case of shocase of showing basedwing basedprograms theprograms theCopy shall bCopy shall be Significae Significantly Postedntly Posted(as herein(as hereinafter definafter defined) by Compaed) by Company within finy within fi ve (5) workive (5) working days ofng days ofthe date fothe date for ther the
commencemencommencement of the Adt of the Advertising Pevertising Period set forriod set forth on theth on the first pagefirst page of this Agreof this Agreement. Forement. Forthe purposesthe purposeshereof, a phereof, a program shallrogram shall be deemed tbe deemed to be Signifo be Significantlyicantly
Posted if aPosted if at least 85%t least 85%of the progrof the program has beenam has beenposted. Nudiposted. Nudity, pornogrty, pornographic, profaaphic, profane or obscenne or obscene copy shalle copy shallnot be pernot be permitted. Themitted. The character,character,design, texdesign, text andt and
illustratioillustratio ns on advertns on advertising copyising copyand the maand the material usedterial usedshall be subshall be subject to apprject to approval by Comoval by Company and bypany and bylocation owlocation owner, transiner, transit company/at company/authority oruthority or thirdthird
party contrparty controlling locaolling location ("Ownetion ("Owner"). If cor"). If co py is rejecpy is rejected, Advertted, Advertiser shalliser shallcontinue tcontinue to be liableo be liablefor the fullfor the full term of thisterm of this Contract anContract and Advertisd Advertiser shall beer shall be
responsibleresponsiblefor providinfor providin g an accepg an acceptable replatable replacement copycement copywithin ten dwithin ten days of notifays of notification thatication that a previousa previouscopy was recopy was rejected. Ifjected. If productionproduction is receivedis receivedafter theafter the
date specifdate specified by Compaied by Company, Companyny, Companyshall be enshall be entitled to ftitled to full paymentull payment for the confor the contract periodtract period even if pareven if partial or notial or no display resdisplay results. Adverults. Advertiser shalltiser shall indemnify,indemnify,
defend anddefend andsave harmlessave harmless Company ans Company and Owner agaid Owner against all clainst all claims and liabims and liabilities arilities arising out ofsing out of the advertisthe advertising materialing material displayed udisplayed under thisnder this Contract,Contract, includingincluding
but not limbut not lim ited to anited to any claim fory claim for defamation,defamation,or infringemor infringem ent of any cent of any copyright, tropyright, tr ademark, orademark, or other intelother intellectual prolectual property or priperty or pri vacy rightvacy right and reasonaand reasonableble
attorneys'attorneys' fees and expfees and expenses incurenses incurred in defenred in defending any sucding any such claims.h claims.

3. Should A3. Should Advertiser'sdvertiser's copy be damacopy be damaged, defaceged, defaced, or deterd, or deteriorated foriorated for any reasonany reasonwhatsoeverwhatsoever, including, including ordinary weaordinary wear and tear,r and tear, or if lostor if lost or stolen,or stolen,
AdvertiserAdvertiser shall furnishall furni sh a replacsh a replacement copy,ement copy,upon Companupon Company's requesty's request, without l, without l iability oriability or expense to Cexpense to Company. Ifompany. If Advertiser fAdvertiser fails to proails to provide suchvide such
replacementreplacementcopy, Compacopy, Company may useny may usethe locatithe location involvedon involvedin any manin any manner, withoutner, without releasing Areleasing Advertiser frdvertiser fr om obligatioom obligation to pay fon to pay for such locatr such location. Unlession. Unless
otherwise sotherwise specified onpecified onthe face herthe face hereof, thereeof, therewill be a sewill be a service chargervice chargefor all insfor all installationstallations on walls anon walls and for any chd for any changes in ananges in any display may display material afteterial afterr
initial plainitial pla cement. Alcement. All designs fol designs for displays pr displays produced byroduced byCompany wilCompany will be faithfl be faithfully reprodully reprod uced. Compuced. Company will maiany will maintain displntain displays in goodays in goodconditioncondition to theto the
extent of mextent of matters reasatters reasonably withonably within Companyin Company's control's control or assumedor assumedresponsibilresponsibilities. Anyities. Any repaintingrepainting or repostingor reposting requested byrequested byAdvertiser iAdvertiser in addition tn addition to thato that
specified hspecified herein, if anerein, if any, shall bey, shall bepaid by Advepaid by Advertiser in adrtiser in advance per Covance per Company's currmpany's current quoted pent quoted prices.rices.

4. If for a4. If for any reason whny reason whatsoever duatsoever during the terring the term hereof (im hereof (i) Company) Company is unable tois unable tosecure anysecure anyspecifiedspecifiedlocation orlocation or loses the rloses the right to useight to useany locatioany location, orn, or
(ii) any lo(ii) any location becocation becomes obstrucmes obstructed, destrted, destroyed or defaoyed or defaced, or (iced, or (iii) Companyii) Company fails to tifails to timely meet itmely meet its posting res posting requirementsquirementshereunder, ahereunder, any resultingny resulting lossloss
of advertisof advertising shall noing shall not be deemedt be deemeda breach ora breach orterminatiotermination of thisn of this Contract.Contract. Company shalCompany shall have thel have theoption to roption to replace losteplace lostlocations wilocations with locationsth locationsofof
equal valueequal valueper Companyper Company's prices a's prices and/or classind/or classifications,fications,or to issueor to issuea pro-rateda pro-rated credit. Anycredit. Any delay in comdelay in commencing of smencing of service and/oervice and/or posting or posting of fewerf fewer
locations tlocations than specifihan specified and/or red and/or resulting lesulting loss of adveoss of advertising sertising service causervice caused by any red by any reason whatsoason whatsoever, shallever, shallnot rendernot render Company liaCompany liable for anyble for any damagesdamages
or offsetsor offsetsof any kinof any kind and shalld and shallbe remediebe remedied solely bd solely by extendiny extending the Advertg the Advertising Perioising Period of this Cd of this Contract toontract to provide an eprovide an equivalent aquivalent amount of admount of advertisingvertising
service atservice atthe contractthe contracted locationed locationor a replaceor a replacement locatiment location of equalon of equalvalue, or atvalue, or atCompany's oCompany's option, resulption, result in a pro-t in a pro-rated creditrated credit, with all, with all other remediother remedieses
at law or eat law or equity beingquity being expressly wexpressly waived by Advaived by Advertiser. Notertiser. Notwithstandinwithstanding anythingg anything containedcontainedherein to thherein to the contrary,e contrary, if any locatif any location is lostion is lost for any reafor any reasonson
whatsoever,whatsoever,Company shalCompany shall also havel also havethe option tthe option to terminato terminate this Contre this Contract and recact and receive paymeneive payment in full ft in full f or servicesor servicesthrough thethrough the terminationtermination date.date.

5. Where il5. Where illuminated diluminated displays are psplays are provided, ilrovided, illumination wlumination will be fromill be from dusk to midndusk to midnight. Ifight. If illuminatioilluminatio n is haltedn is haltedor reducedor reducedfor any reafor any reason, includson, includinging
but not limbut not lim ited to opited to operation oferation of law or malflaw or malfunction ofunction of equipment,equipment,AdvertiserAdvertiser shall receivshall receive a credit fe a credit for the perioor the period of reduced of reduced or non-ild or non-il luminationlumination at theat the
rate of fifrate of fif teen percentteen percent(15%) of the(15%) of the contract prcontract price for theice for the impacted peimpacted period, providriod, provid ed Advertised Advertiser shall haer shall have first give first given writtenven written notice to Cnotice to Company of thompany of thee
illuminatioilluminatio n problem an problem and same cond same continues fontinues for more thanr more than five (5) dayfive (5) days after Coms after Company's recepany's receipt of suchipt of such notice.notice.

6. Advertis6. Advertiser shall inser shall inspect the dispect the display withinplay within three (3) dathree (3) days after insys after installation.tallation. Unless withUnless within such periin such period Advertisod Advertiser gives wrier gives written notictten notice to Companye to Company
specifyingspecifyingany defect,any defect,the displaythe displayshall be conshall be conclusivelyclusivelypresumed topresumed tohave been ihave been inspected anspected and approvednd approvedby Advertiby Adverti ser for allser for all purposes whapurposes whatsoever,tsoever,
including cincluding content and lontent and location of docation of displays. Iisplays. If after instf after installation ofallation of display Owdisplay Owner disapproner disapproves any adveves any advertisement,rtisement,or if adveror if adverse publicityse publicity results froresults fromm
any displayany display, Company sh, Company shall have theall have theright to reright to re move advertmove advertisement andisement and, at its opt, at its option, eitherion, either terminate tterminate this Contracthis Contract or requestor requesta new accepta new acceptableable
advertisemeadvertisement copy purnt copy pursuant to pasuant to paragraph 2ragraph 2 above. Comabove. Company and Advpany and Advertiser accertiser accept this Coept this Contract subntract subject to allject to all federal, stfederal, state and muniate and municipal laws acipal laws andnd
regulationsregulations. In the ev. In the event any advent any advertisementertisementbecomes ilbecomes illegal, Comlegal, Company reservepany reserves the righs the right to termint to terminate same upate same upon notice toon notice toAdvertiser.Advertiser. Acceptance oAcceptance off
this Contrathis Contract is subject is subject to credict to credit check andt check andapproval byapproval by Company. CoCompany. Company, in itmpany, in its sole diss sole discretion, macretion, may extend ory extend orreject credreject credit, or atit, or at any time duany time duringring
the term, wthe term, withdraw creithdraw credit and Compdit and Company may theany may thereupon requireupon require partialre partial or full payor full payment of thement of theremaining cremaining contract amoontract amount in advunt in advance. In tance. In the event ofhe event ofanyany
terminationtermination under thisunder this paragraph,paragraph, Advertiser'sAdvertiser's obligation sobligation shall ceasehall ceaseas of theas of theeffective teeffective termination drmination date.ate.

7. Agency a7. Agency and Advertind Adverti ser shall beser shall bejointly andjointly and severally liseverally liable for pable for payment of thayment of the amounts owe amounts owed under thied under this Contract.s Contract. In the eventIn the eventof default oof default or materialr material
breach by Abreach by Advertiser/Agdvertiser/Agency, in adency, in addition to odition to other remediether remedies availables availableat law, Coat law, Company may:mpany may: (a) cancel(a) cancelthis Contrathis Contract withoutct without prior notiprior noti ce and demace and demandnd
payments ofpayments ofall amountsall amountsremaining dremaining due and owingue and owing; (b) withou; (b) without terminatit terminati ng this Contng this Contract, declaract, declare the entirre the entire balance ofe balance ofpayments topayments tobe made herbe made hereundereunder
immediatelyimmediately due and padue and payable; (c) ryable; (c) remove all oemove all of Advertisf Advertiser's displayer's displays without ls without limiting Adveimiting Advertiser's lirtiser's li ability herability hereunder; aneunder; and/or (d) decd/or (d) declare Advertilare Adverti ser inser in
default unddefault under any otherer any other agreement wiagreement with Company.th Company. Waiver byWaiver by Company ofCompany ofany breachany breachby Advertiby Adverti ser/Agencyser/Agencyhereunder shhereunder shall not prejall not prejudice the riudice the rights ofghts of
Company witCompany with respect toh respect toany breachany breachnot specifnot specifically waiveically waived by Companyd by Company. In the e. In the event of legvent of legal actional action arising ouarising out of this Ct of this Contract, Coontract, Company shalmpany shall bel be
entitled toentitled to recover itrecover its reasonabs reasonable attorneyle attorneys' fees ands' fees andout of pockout of pocket expenseet expenses. This Cons. This Contract and atract and all related cll related claims shalllaims shallbe construebe construed accordingd accordingto theto the
laws of thelaws of theState of ArState of Arizona and Maizona and Maricopa Counricopa County, Arizonaty, Arizona shall be thshall be the proper ande proper andexclusive lexclusive legal jurisdiegal jurisdiction and vction and venue for anenue for any resultingy resulting legal actionlegal action..

8. Invoicin8. Invoicing will be rg will be rendered montendered monthly in advanhly in advance dating frce dating from the comom the commencement dmencement date. Invoiate. Invoices rendereces rendered to Advertd to Advertiser shall biser shall be conclusivee conclusiveas to theas to the
correctnesscorrectnessof the itemof the items stated uns stated unless Companless Company receivesy receiveswritten obwritten objection witjection within fifteenhin fifteen (15) days t(15) days thereof. Nonhereof. Non-receipt o-receipt of invoices of invoices or lack of inr lack of in voicing,voicing,
shall not ishall not impact Advertmpact Advertiser's liabiiser's liability hereundlity hereunder. Any discer. Any discounts givenounts givenshall be forshall be forfeited/revefeited/reversed for invrsed for invoices not paoices not paid within sid within sixty (60) dixty (60) days from thays from thee
date thereodate thereof. All ratef. All rate s and adjuss and adjustments aretments arecomputed oncomputed onthe basis othe basis of thirty (3f thirty (3 0) days to0) days tothe month, uthe month, unless a diffnless a different perioerent period is specifd is specified on the fied on the faceace
hereof. Invhereof. Invoices shalloices shallbe due thirbe due thirty (30) dayty (30) days after thes after thedate of invodate of invoice and faiice and failure to palure to pay within sucy within such timeframeh timeframe shall resulshall result in a defaut in a default hereunderlt hereunder andand
shall furthshall furth er be deemeder be deemeda default una default under any otheder any other agreemenr agreements with Comts with Company. Invopany. Invoices not pices not paid when duaid when due shall accre shall accrue interestue interestat the rateat the rate of one and oof one and one-ne-
half percenhalf percent (1.5%) pet (1.5%) per month (18%r month (18% annual), oannual), or such lesser such lesser rate permr rate permitted by lawitted by law..

9. Company9. Companyshall not bshall not be held respe held responsible foronsible for unused posteunused posters, displayrs, displays or others or other copy providecopy provided by Advertd by Advert iser and Coiser and Company may dimpany may dispose of anspose of any suchy such
materials.materials. Company mayCompany maypromote Compromote Company's ownpany's ownbusiness thrbusiness through the usough the use of Adverte of Advertiser's posiser's posters or disters or displays in anplays in any manner why manner whatsoever.atsoever. Company isCompany is
an Equal Opan Equal Opportunity Eportunity E mployer.mployer.

10. This Co10. This Contract contantract contains the fulins the full agreementl agreementof the partof the parties, and noies, and noprior represprior representation orentation or assurance,assurance,verbal or wverbal or written not critten not contained herontained herein, shallein, shall
affect or aaffect or alter the oblter the obligation oligation of either parf either party hereto.ty hereto. This ContracThis Contract is not cant is not cancelable or acelable or assignable byssignable byAdvertiser,Advertiser, nor may thenor may the subject ofsubject of the advertisthe advertisinging
be changedbe changedwithout thewithout the consent of Cconsent of Company. Notompany. Notwithstandinwithstanding the foregog the foregoing, agreeming, agreements for trents for transit displansit displays may beays may becancelled bycancelled byAdvertiserAdvertiser uponupon
providing aproviding at least 90-dt least 90-days writtenays written notice priornotice prior to affectedto affectedposting datposting date, with Advee, with Advertiser payinrtiser paying, upon invog, upon invoicing, shoricing, short rate for at rate for actual lengtctual length of term.h of term.

11. The fol11. The following provilowing provisions shallsions shallbe applicabe applicable in theble in the event that tevent that this Contracthis Contract shall be forshall be for the displaythe displayof advertisiof advertising copy on ang copy on aLED, LCD orLED, LCD or other digiother digitaltal
display sigdisplay sign ("Digitaln ("Digital Sign"): NoSign"): Notwithstanditwithstanding anythingng anythingherein to therein to the contrarhe contrary, the Compay, the Company shall beny shall benot obligatenot obligated to displayd to display the copy forthe copy for more than 9more than 91% of1% of
the displaythe displaytime providtime provided hereundered hereunder(the "Guar(the "Guar anteed Dispanteed Display Time").lay Time"). If the CompIf the Company displaany displays the copyys the copyfor at leasfor at least the Guarant the Guaranteed Displteed Display time, theay time, therere
shall be noshall be noreductionreduction in the feein the feepaid hereundpaid hereunder or extener or extension of thesion of theterm hereof.term hereof. If the CompIf the Company displayany displays the copy fs the copy for less thor less than the Guaran the Guaranteed Disanteed Display Time,play Time,
the Companythe Companyshall, in ishall, in its sole dists sole discretion, eicretion, either (i) terther (i) terminate thisminate this Contract anContract and reimbursed reimburse the Advertithe Advertiser for feeser for fees paid rels paid relating to thating to the period fe period for which thor which thee
copy was nocopy was not displayet displayed for at led for at least the Guarast the Guaranteed Displanteed Display Time, (iiay Time, (ii) equitably) equitably extend the Aextend the Advertising Pdvertising Period of theriod of this Contractis Contract at the contat the contracted locatracted location or aion or a
replacementreplacementlocation oflocation of equal valueequal value, or (iii) i, or (iii) i ssue to Advessue to Advertiser a prortiser a pro-rated cred-rated credit for advit for adv ertising serertising services equivvices equivalent to talent to the period fhe period for which cor which copy was notopy was not
displayed fdisplayed for the Guaraor the Guaranteed Dispnteed Display Time.lay Time. The AdvertiThe Advertiser hereby eser hereby expressly waixpressly waives all otheves all other remedies ar remedies at law or eqt law or equity, anduity, and the Companythe Companyshall have nshall have no othero other
liability tliability t o the Adverto the Advertiser as a reiser as a result of anysult of any failure to dfailure to display the cisplay the copy for atopy for at least the Gleast the Guaranteed Duaranteed Display Timisplay Time. In addite. In addition to theion to the foregoing, tforegoing, the Companyhe Company
shall haveshall havethe right athe right at any timet any time to preempt tto preempt the display ohe display of copy in orf copy in order to utilider to utili ze the Digitze the Digital Sign(s)al Sign(s)for publicfor public service messservice messages in connages in connection withection with (i) an(i) an
Amber AlertAmber Alert , or (ii) a, or (ii) at the request the request of any Fet of any Federal, Statederal, Stateor local auor local authority, anthority, any public emy public emergency (inergency (including butcluding but not limitednot limited to emergento emergencies relatecies related to homeland to homelandd
security) (security) (an "Emergencan "Emergency Interruptiy Interrupti on"). In suon"). In such event, tch event, the Company she Company shall not behall not be in breach ofin breach of this Contrathis Contract and thect and theCompany shalCompany shall have no ll have no liability toiability to thethe
AdvertiserAdvertiser pursuant topursuant to the precedthe preceding paragraping paragraph or otherwh or otherwise as a reise as a result of anysult of any such Emergensuch Emergency Interrucy Interru ption. Theption. The AdvertiserAdvertiser hereby exprhereby expressly waivessly waives anyes any
remedies atremedies atlaw or equilaw or equity to whicty to which the Adverth the Advertiser might oiser might otherwise betherwise beentitled asentitled asa result oa result of such Emergf such Emergency Interrency Interruption. Foruption. For the purposethe purposes of the prs of the provisionsovisions
hereof perthereof pertaining to thaining to the display ofe display ofadvertisingadvertising on a Digitaon a Digital Sign, "copl Sign, "copy" shall bey" shall be deemed todeemed tomean any advmean any advertisement dertisement displayed onisplayed onsuch sign whsuch sign whether the sether the same isame is
animated, sanimated, static or ottatic or otherwise, spherwise, specificallyecifically including,including, but not limibut not limi ted to, strted to, streaming conteeaming content or digitnt or digit al images,al images,as applicaas applicable.ble.

12. Agency/12. Agency/AdvertiserAdvertiser hereby reprehereby represents, warrsents, warrants and conants and confirms thatfirms that it is awareit is aware of the requiof the requirements of 1rements of 18 U.S.C. ¤¤8 U.S.C. ¤¤2257-2257A a2257-2257A and that itnd that it fully complfully complies withies with
them eitherthem either by certifyiby certifying to the U.ng to the U.S. AttorneyS. Attorney General, inGeneral, in the form rethe form required by 2quired by 28 C.F.R. ¤8 C.F.R. ¤ 75.9, that75.9, thatAgency/AdverAgency/Advertiser colletiser collects and macts and maintains indiintains individuallyvidually
identifiablidentifiabl e informatie information relatinon relating to modelsg to modelsused in theused in theadvertisemenadvertisement to be dist to be displayed pursplayed pursuant to theuant to the terms hereterms hereof (includiof (including but not lng but not limited to thimited to their names,eir names,
addresses,addresses,and dates ofand dates ofbirth) in acbirth) in accordance witcordance with applicableh applicableFederal anFederal and/or Stated/or Statetax and labtax and labor or otheor or other law, or tr law, or t hat Agency/hat Agency/Advertiser cAdvertiser creates, maireates, maintains,ntains,
cross-indexcross-indexes and makeses and makesavailable favailable for inspectior inspection recordson recordsas requireas required by 28 C.Fd by 28 C.F.R. ¤¤ 75.2.R. ¤¤ 75.2-75.5. Upon-75.5. Uponrequest, Arequest, Agency/Advertgency/Advertiser will piser will provide Comparovide Company withny with
proof of itproof of it s compliancs compliance.e.
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07$�$'9(57,6,1*�32/,&<

,�� 385326(� �

$� 7R�HVWDEOLVK�XQLIRUP��UHDVRQDEOH��DQG�YLHZSRLQW�QHXWUDO�VWDQGDUGV�IRU�WKH�GLVSOD\�RI�
DGYHUWLVLQJ�LQ�DQG�RQ�WKH�IDFLOLWLHV��YHKLFOHV�DQG�RWKHU�SURSHUW\��WRJHWKHU�³3URSHUW\´��RI�
WKH�0HWURSROLWDQ�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�$XWKRULW\�DQG�LWV�DIILOLDWHG�DQG�VXEVLGLDU\�DJHQFLHV�
�WRJHWKHU�³07$´��

%� 7R�FRQYHUW�WKH�07$¶V�3URSHUW\�IURP�D�GHVLJQDWHG�SXEOLF�IRUXP�LQWR�D�OLPLWHG�SXEOLF�
IRUXP�E\�H[FOXGLQJ�DGYHUWLVLQJ�RI�D�SROLWLFDO�QDWXUH�DIWHU�WKH�(IIHFWLYH�'DWH���

,,�� 6&23(�

7KLV�SROLF\�DSSOLHV�WR�DOO�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�SURSRVHG�WR�EH�GLVSOD\HG�LQ�DQG�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�RQ�RU�
DIWHU�WKH�(IIHFWLYH�'DWH�VHW�IRUWK�EHORZ���

,,,�� 2%-(&7,9(�

7KH�07$¶V�PLVVLRQ�LV�WR�SURYLGH�VDIH��UHOLDEOH��DQG�HIILFLHQW�SXEOLF�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�DQG�FURVVLQJV�
ZLWKLQ�LWV�VHUYLFH�DUHD��7KH�07$¶V�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�RSHUDWLRQV�DUH�IXQGHG�E\�D�FRPELQDWLRQ�RI�
IHGHUDO��VWDWH��DQG�ORFDO�IXQGV��LQFOXGLQJ�JUDQWV�DQG�WD[HV��DV�ZHOO�DV�IDUH�ER[�DQG�WROO�UHYHQXH��
$GYHUWLVLQJ�UHYHQXHV�DUH�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�VXSSOHPHQWDO�VRXUFH�RI�UHYHQXH�WKDW�VXSSRUWV�WKH�07$¶V�
WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�RSHUDWLRQV���7KH�07$¶V�SXUSRVH�LQ�DOORZLQJ�SDLG�DGYHUWLVLQJ�WR�EH�GLVSOD\HG�LQ�
DQG�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�LV�WR�PD[LPL]H�VXFK�VXSSOHPHQWDO�UHYHQXH�WR�VXSSRUW�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
RSHUDWLRQV�

%\�DFFHSWLQJ�SDLG�DGYHUWLVLQJ�IRU�GLVSOD\�LQ�DQG�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\��WKH�07$�LV�DFWLQJ�LQ�D�
SURSULHWDU\�FDSDFLW\�DV�D�SURYLGHU�RI�SXEOLF�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�DQG�FURVVLQJV�VHHNLQJ�WR�PD[LPL]H�
DGYHUWLVLQJ�UHYHQXH�WR�VXSSRUW�LWV�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�RSHUDWLRQV���6WDUWLQJ�IURP�WKH�(IIHFWLYH�'DWH��WKH�
07$�GRHV�QRW�LQWHQG�WKDW�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�SHUPLWWHG�WR�EH�GLVSOD\HG�LQ�DQG�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�EH�
FUHDWHG��GHVLJQDWHG��RU�XVHG�DV�D�SXEOLF�IRUXP�IRU�H[SUHVVLYH�DFWLYLWLHV�RU�JHQHUDO�GLVFRXUVH�RU�
RSLQLRQV��,Q�IXUWKHUDQFH�RI�WKH�07$¶V�SXUSRVH�RI�PD[LPL]LQJ�DGYHUWLVLQJ�UHYHQXH��WKH�07$�LQ�
LWV�SURSULHWDU\�FDSDFLW\�LV�OLPLWLQJ�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�LW�ZLOO�DFFHSW�IRU�GLVSOD\�LQ�DQG�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�
WR�SDLG�FRPPHUFLDO�DGYHUWLVLQJ��FHUWDLQ�SXEOLF�VHUYLFH�DQQRXQFHPHQWV�WKDW�ZLOO�KHOS�EXLOG�
JRRGZLOO�IRU�WKH�07$�DPRQJ�LWV�ULGHUV�DQG�WKH�SXEOLF��DQG�JRYHUQPHQWDO�PHVVDJHV��7KH�07$�
UHWDLQV�FRQWURO�RYHU�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�WKDW�LW�ZLOO�DOORZ�WR�EH�GLVSOD\HG�LQ�DQG�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�E\�
VXEMHFWLQJ�DOO�SURSRVHG�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�WR�WKH�$GYHUWLVLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�EHORZ���07$�H[SUHVVO\�
LQWHQGV�WKDW�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�SHUPLWWHG�WR�EH�GLVSOD\HG�LQ�DQG�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�EH�D�OLPLWHG�SXEOLF�
IRUXP��

,Q�HVWDEOLVKLQJ�DQG�HQIRUFLQJ�WKHVH�$GYHUWLVLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��WKH�07$�VHHNV�WR�IXOILOO�WKH�IROORZLQJ�
JRDOV�DQG�REMHFWLYHV��

�x 0D[LPL]H�DGYHUWLVLQJ�UHYHQXH��
�x 0D[LPL]H�ULGHUVKLS�DQG�IDUH�UHYHQXH�
�x 0DLQWDLQ�D�VHFXUH�DQG�RUGHUO\�RSHUDWLQJ�HQYLURQPHQW�

0DVWHU�3DJH�������RI�������07$�%RDUG�0HHWLQJ����������
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�x 0DLQWDLQ�D�VDIH�DQG�ZHOFRPLQJ�HQYLURQPHQW�IRU�DOO�07$�HPSOR\HHV�DQG�
FXVWRPHUV��LQFOXGLQJ�PLQRUV��ZKR�XVH�07$¶V�VXEZD\V��EXVHV��FRPPXWHU�WUDLQV�
DQG�FURVVLQJV�

�x 0LQLPL]H�WKH�UHVRXUFHV�DQG�DWWHQWLRQ�WKDW�KDYH�EHHQ�H[SHQGHG�WR�UHVROYH�GLVSXWHV�
UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�SHUPLVVLELOLW\�RI�FHUWDLQ�SROLWLFDO�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV��WKXV�XQQHFHVVDULO\�
GLYHUWLQJ�WKH�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�IURP�SHUIRUPLQJ�LWV�PLVVLRQ�

�x $YRLG�LGHQWLILFDWLRQ�RI�07$�ZLWK��DQG�WKH�DSSHDUDQFH�RI�07$�HQGRUVHPHQW�RI��
WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�RI�QRQ�07$�SDUWLHV�GLVSOD\HG�LQ�RU�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\��LQFOXGLQJ�
WKH�DVVRFLDWHG�PHVVDJHV��SURGXFWV��VHUYLFHV��RU�HYHQWV�EHLQJ�SURSRVHG�RU�SURPRWHG

,9�� $'9(57,6,1*�67$1'$5'6�

� $�� 3HUPLWWHG�$GYHUWLVLQJ�

� 7KH�07$�PD\�GLVSOD\�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�WKDW�IDOO�XQGHU�RQH�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�
FDWHJRULHV��

� ��� &RPPHUFLDO�DGYHUWLVLQJ��3DLG�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�WKDW�SURSRVH��SURPRWH��RU�VROLFLW�WKH�
VDOH��UHQW��OHDVH��OLFHQVH��GLVWULEXWLRQ��RU�DYDLODELOLW\�RI��RU�VRPH�RWKHU�FRPPHUFLDO�WUDQVDFWLRQ�
FRQFHUQLQJ��JRRGV��SURGXFWV��VHUYLFHV��RU�HYHQWV�IRU�WKH�DGYHUWLVHU¶V�FRPPHUFLDO�RU�SURSULHWDU\�
LQWHUHVW��RU�PRUH�JHQHUDOO\�SURPRWH�DQ�HQWLW\�WKDW�HQJDJHV�LQ�VXFK�DFWLYLWLHV���

� ��� *RYHUQPHQWDO�DGYHUWLVLQJ��1RWLFHV�RU�PHVVDJHV�IURP�WKH�07$�WKDW�SURPRWH�WKH�
07$�RU�DQ\�RI�LWV�IXQFWLRQV�RU�SURJUDPV��DQG�DOVR�SDLG�QRWLFHV�RU�PHVVDJHV�RI�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�
JRYHUQPHQW��WKH�6WDWH�RI�1HZ�<RUN�DQG�LWV�DJHQFLHV��WKH�&LW\�RI�1HZ�<RUN�DQG�LWV�GHSDUWPHQWV��
RU�RI�DQ\�RI�WKH�&RXQW\�JRYHUQPHQWV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�0HWURSROLWDQ�&RPPXWHU�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�'LVWULFW�
WKDW�DGYDQFH�VSHFLILF�JRYHUQPHQWDO�SXUSRVHV��

� ��� 3XEOLF�VHUYLFH�DQQRXQFHPHQWV��3XEOLF�VHUYLFH�DQQRXQFHPHQWV�QRW�RWKHUZLVH�
SURKLELWHG�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�,9�%�RI�WKLV�3ROLF\��ZKLFK�DUH�VSRQVRUHG�E\�HLWKHU�D�JRYHUQPHQW�HQWLW\�
RU�D�QRQSURILW�FRUSRUDWLRQ�WKDW�LV�H[HPSW�IURP�WD[DWLRQ�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����F�����RI�WKH�,QWHUQDO�
5HYHQXH�&RGH�DQG�ZKLFK�DUH�GLUHFWHG�WR�WKH�JHQHUDO�SXEOLF�DQG�UHODWH�GLUHFWO\�WR��

�x 3UHYHQWLRQ�RU�WUHDWPHQW�RI�LOOQHVVHV��
�x 3URPRWLRQ�RI�VDIHW\�RU�SHUVRQDO�ZHOO�EHLQJ��
�x (GXFDWLRQ�RU�WUDLQLQJ��
�x $UW�RU�FXOWXUH��
�x 3URYLVLRQ�RI�FKLOGUHQ�DQG�IDPLO\�VHUYLFHV��
�x 3URYLVLRQ�RI�VHUYLFHV�DQG�SURJUDPV�WKDW�SURYLGH�VXSSRUW�WR�ORZ�LQFRPH�

FLWL]HQV��VHQLRU�FLWL]HQV��RU�SHRSOH�ZLWK�GLVDELOLWLHV��RU�
�x 6ROLFLWDWLRQ�E\�EURDG�EDVHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�FDPSDLJQV�WKDW�SURYLGH�IXQGV�WR�

PXOWLSOH�FKDULWDEOH�RUJDQL]DWLRQV�DFWLYH�LQ�WKH�DERYH�OLVWHG�DUHDV��

0DVWHU�3DJH�������RI�������07$�%RDUG�0HHWLQJ����������
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%� 3URKLELWHG�$GYHUWLVLQJ

� �1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJ�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ��WKH�07$�ZLOO�QRW�DFFHSW�DQ\�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�IRU�GLVSOD\�LQ�
RU�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�LI�LW�IDOOV�ZLWKLQ�RQH�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FDWHJRULHV��

�� 3URPRWHV�RU�RSSRVHV�D�SROLWLFDO�SDUW\��RU�SURPRWHV�RU�RSSRVHV�DQ\�EDOORW�
UHIHUHQGXP�RU�WKH�HOHFWLRQ�RI�DQ\�FDQGLGDWH�RU�JURXS�RI�FDQGLGDWHV�IRU�IHGHUDO��VWDWH��MXGLFLDO��RU�
ORFDO�JRYHUQPHQW�RIILFHV��

�� ,V�SROLWLFDO�LQ�QDWXUH��LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�WKDW�HLWKHU��

D� $UH�GLUHFWHG�RU�DGGUHVVHG�WR�WKH�DFWLRQ��LQDFWLRQ��SURVSHFWLYH�DFWLRQ�RU�SROLFLHV�
RI�D�JRYHUQPHQWDO�HQWLW\��H[FHSW�DV�SHUPLWWHG�LQ�6HFWLRQV�,9�$��±,9�$���RI�
WKLV�3ROLF\��RU

E� 3URPLQHQWO\�RU�SUHGRPLQDWHO\�DGYRFDWH�RU�H[SUHVV�D�SROLWLFDO�PHVVDJH��
LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR�DQ�RSLQLRQ��SRVLWLRQ��RU�YLHZSRLQW�UHJDUGLQJ�
GLVSXWHG�HFRQRPLF��SROLWLFDO��PRUDO��UHOLJLRXV�RU�VRFLDO�LVVXHV�RU�UHODWHG�
PDWWHUV��RU�VXSSRUW�IRU�RU�RSSRVLWLRQ�WR�GLVSXWHG�LVVXHV�RU�FDXVHV��

��� ,V�IDOVH��PLVOHDGLQJ��RU�GHFHSWLYH��

� ��� 3URPRWHV�XQODZIXO�RU�LOOHJDO�JRRGV��VHUYLFHV��RU�DFWLYLWLHV��RU�LQYROYHV�RWKHU�
XQODZIXO�FRQGXFW��

� ��� )DOVHO\�LPSOLHV�RU�GHFODUHV�DQ�HQGRUVHPHQW�E\�WKH�07$�RI�DQ\�VHUYLFH��SURGXFW��
RU�SRLQW�RI�YLHZ�

� ��� (QFRXUDJHV�RU�GHSLFWV�XQVDIH�EHKDYLRU�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�07$¶V�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
RSHUDWLRQV��VXFK�DV�IDLOXUH�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�QRUPDO�VDIHW\�SUHFDXWLRQV�LQ�DZDLWLQJ��ERDUGLQJ��ULGLQJ�
XSRQ�RU�GHEDUNLQJ�IURP�07$�YHKLFOHV��RU�LV�RWKHUZLVH�GLUHFWO\�DGYHUVH�WR�WKH�FRPPHUFLDO��
DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�RU�RSHUDWLRQDO�LQWHUHVWV�RI�WKH�07$�DV�D�EXVLQHVV��

��� 'HSLFWV�RU�GHVFULEHV�LQ�D�SDWHQWO\�RIIHQVLYH�PDQQHU�VH[XDO�RU�H[FUHWRU\�DFWLYLWLHV�
VR�DV�WR�VDWLVI\�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�REVFHQH�PDWHULDO�DV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�1HZ�<RUN�3HQDO�/DZ�����������
DV�VXFK�SURYLVLRQ�PD\�EH�DPHQGHG��PRGLILHG��RU�VXSSOHPHQWHG�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH��

� ��� &RQWDLQV�PDWHULDO��ZKLFK��LI�VROG�RU�ORDQHG�WR�D�PLQRU�IRU�PRQHWDU\�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�
ZLWK�NQRZOHGJH�RI�LWV�FKDUDFWHU�DQG�FRQWHQW��ZRXOG�JLYH�ULVH�WR�D�YLRODWLRQ�RI�1HZ�<RUN�3HQDO�
/DZ�����������ZKLFK�SURKLELWV�WKH�GLVVHPLQDWLRQ�RI�LQGHFHQW�PDWHULDO�WR�PLQRUV��DV�VXFK�
SURYLVLRQ�PD\�EH�DPHQGHG��PRGLILHG��RU�VXSSOHPHQWHG�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH��

� ��� &RQWDLQV�PDWHULDO��ZKLFK��LI�GLVSOD\HG�ZLWK�NQRZOHGJH�RI�LWV�FKDUDFWHU�DQG�
FRQWHQW��ZRXOG�JLYH�ULVH�WR�D�YLRODWLRQ�RI�1HZ�<RUN�3HQDO�/DZ�����������ZKLFK�SURKLELWV�WKH�
SXEOLF�GLVSOD\�RI�RIIHQVLYH�VH[XDO�PDWHULDO��DV�VXFK�SURYLVLRQ�PD\�EH�DPHQGHG��PRGLILHG��RU�
VXSSOHPHQWHG�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH��

���� 3URPRWHV�WREDFFR�RU�DQ\�WREDFFR�UHODWHG�SURGXFW��

0DVWHU�3DJH�������RI�������07$�%RDUG�0HHWLQJ����������
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� ���� &RQWDLQV�DQ�LPDJH�RI�D�SHUVRQ�ZKR�DSSHDUV�WR�EH�D�PLQRU�LQ�VH[XDOO\�VXJJHVWLYH�
GUHVV��SRVH��RU�FRQWH[W��

� ���� &RQWDLQV�PDWHULDO�WKH�GLVSOD\�RI�ZKLFK�WKH�07$�UHDVRQDEO\�IRUHVHHV�ZRXOG�
LPPLQHQWO\�LQFLWH�RU�SURYRNH�YLROHQFH�RU�RWKHU�LPPHGLDWH�EUHDFK�RI�WKH�SHDFH��DQG�VR�KDUP��
GLVUXSW��RU�LQWHUIHUH�ZLWK�VDIH��HIILFLHQW��DQG�RUGHUO\�WUDQVLW�RSHUDWLRQV��

� ���� &RQWDLQV�PDWHULDO�WKDW�GHPHDQV�RU�GLVSDUDJHV�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�RU�JURXS�RI�
LQGLYLGXDOV���)RU�SXUSRVHV�RI�GHWHUPLQLQJ�ZKHWKHU�DQ�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�FRQWDLQV�VXFK�PDWHULDO��WKH�
07$�ZLOO�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�D�UHDVRQDEO\�SUXGHQW�SHUVRQ��NQRZOHGJHDEOH�RI�WKH�07$¶V�
ULGHUVKLS�DQG�XVLQJ�SUHYDLOLQJ�FRPPXQLW\�VWDQGDUGV��ZRXOG�EHOLHYH�WKDW�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�
FRQWDLQV�PDWHULDO�WKDW�LV�DEXVLYH�WR��RU�GHEDVHV�WKH�GLJQLW\�RI��DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�RU�JURXS�RI�
LQGLYLGXDOV�

���� &RQWDLQV�VH[XDOO\�H[SOLFLW�PDWHULDO�WKDW�DSSHDOV�WR�WKH�SUXULHQW�LQWHUHVW�LQ�VH[�RU�LV�
VR�YLROHQW��IULJKWHQLQJ��RU�RWKHUZLVH�GLVWXUELQJ�DV�WR�UHDVRQDEO\�EH�GHHPHG�KDUPIXO�WR�PLQRUV��

� ���� 3URPRWHV�DQ�HVFRUW�VHUYLFH�RU�VH[XDOO\�RULHQWHG�EXVLQHVV��

� &�� $GGLWLRQDO�3URYLVLRQV�5HODWLQJ�WR�$GYHUWLVHPHQWV

7R�DYRLG�LGHQWLILFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�07$�ZLWK�PHVVDJHV�RU�LPDJHV�FRQWDLQHG�ZLWKLQ�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�
GLVSOD\HG�LQ�DQG�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\�DQG�WR�DYRLG�WKH�DSSHDUDQFH�RI�07$�HQGRUVHPHQW�RI�JRRGV��
SURGXFWV��VHUYLFHV��HYHQWV�E\�DGYHUWLVHUV��DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�VKDOO�UHDGLO\�DQG�XQDPELJXRXVO\�
LGHQWLI\�WKH�SHUVRQ��FRUSRUDWLRQ��RU�HQWLW\�SD\LQJ�IRU�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��$Q�DGYHUWLVHU�PD\��DW�WKH�
07$¶V�GLVFUHWLRQ��EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�LQFOXGH�LQ�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�D�VWDWHPHQW�H[SOLFLWO\�LGHQWLI\LQJ�
WKH�SHUVRQ��FRUSRUDWLRQ��RU�HQWLW\�SD\LQJ�IRU�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��$Q�DGYHUWLVHU�PD\�DOVR��DW�WKH�
07$¶V�GLVFUHWLRQ��EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�LQFRUSRUDWH�DGGLWLRQDO�ODQJXDJH�WR�DYRLG�WKH�DSSHDUDQFH�RI�
07$�HQGRUVHPHQW��

9�� 5(9,(:�2)�$'9(57,6,1*�352326('�)25�',63/$<�,1�25�21�7+(�
3523(57<

�����������%HIRUH�DFFHSWLQJ�DQ�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�IRU�GLVSOD\�LQ�RU�RQ�WKH�3URSHUW\��WKH�
DGYHUWLVLQJ�FRQWUDFWRU�VKDOO�UHYLHZ�VXFK�SURSRVHG�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�WKH�
DGYHUWLVHPHQW�FRPSOLHV�ZLWK�WKH�$GYHUWLVLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�

�����������,I�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�FRQWUDFWRU�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�D�SURSRVHG�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�GRHV�QRW��RU�
PD\�QRW��FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�$GYHUWLVLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�LW�VKDOO�SURPSWO\�QRWLI\�WKH�'LUHFWRU�RI�07$�
5HDO�(VWDWH��RU�D�GHVLJQHH��LQ�ZULWLQJ�RI�LWV�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�DQG�WKH�UHDVRQ�IRU�LWV�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ���

� ��� ,I�WKH�'LUHFWRU�RI�5HDO�(VWDWH�GHWHUPLQHV��IROORZLQJ�UHFHLSW�DQG�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�
VXFK�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQ��WKDW�D�SURSRVHG�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�GRHV�QRW�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�$GYHUWLVLQJ�
6WDQGDUGV��WKH�DGYHUWLVHU�VKDOO�EH�QRWLILHG�E\�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�FRQWUDFWRU��7KH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�
FRQWUDFWRU��LQ�FRQVXOWDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�'LUHFWRU�RI�5HDO�(VWDWH��PD\�GLVFXVV�ZLWK�WKH�DGYHUWLVHU�
UHYLVLRQV�WR�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�WR�WU\�WR�EULQJ�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�LQWR�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�
$GYHUWLVLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��DQG�WKH�DGYHUWLVHU�PD\�VXEPLW�D�UHYLVHG�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�WR�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�
FRQWUDFWRU�IRU�UHYLHZ��

0DVWHU�3DJH�������RI�������07$�%RDUG�0HHWLQJ����������
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��� �,I�WKH�DGYHUWLVHU�DQG�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�FRQWUDFWRU�GR�QRW�UHDFK�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�
UHJDUG�WR�D�UHYLVLRQ�RI�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��RU�WKH�'LUHFWRU�RI�5HDO�(VWDWH�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�QR�
DSSURSULDWH�UHYLVLRQ�ZRXOG�EULQJ�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�LQWR�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�$GYHUWLVLQJ�
6WDQGDUGV��RU�WKH�DGYHUWLVHU�FKRRVHV�QRW�WR�VXEPLW�D�UHYLVHG�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��WKH�DGYHUWLVHU�PD\�
UHTXHVW�D�ILQDO�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�IURP�WKH�'LUHFWRU�RI�5HDO�(VWDWH��7KH�'LUHFWRU�RI�5HDO�(VWDWH��LQ�
UHDFKLQJ�D�ILQDO�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ��PD\�FRQVXOW�ZLWK�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�FRQWUDFWRU��RU�ZLWK�WKH�07$�
*HQHUDO�&RXQVHO��DQG�WKH�&KDLUPDQ�DQG�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU��RU�WKHLU�GHVLJQHHV��RU�ZLWK�DQ\�
RWKHU�LQGLYLGXDOV��DQG�PD\�FRQVLGHU�DQ\�PDWHULDOV�VXEPLWWHG�E\�WKH�DGYHUWLVHU��7KH�'LUHFWRU�RI�
5HDO�(VWDWH�VKDOO�DGYLVH�WKH�DGYHUWLVHU�DQG�WKH�DGYHUWLVLQJ�FRQWUDFWRU�RI�WKH�ILQDO�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�LQ�
ZULWLQJ�

9,�� 6(9(5$%,/,7<���

,I�DQ\�VHFWLRQ��VXEVHFWLRQ��VHQWHQFH��FODXVH��SKUDVH�RU�RWKHU�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKLV�3ROLF\�LV��IRU�DQ\�
UHDVRQ��GHFODUHG�LQYDOLG��LQ�ZKROH�RU�LQ�SDUW��E\�DQ\�FRXUW�RI�FRPSHWHQW�MXULVGLFWLRQ��VXFK�SRUWLRQ�
VKDOO�EH�GHHPHG�VHYHUDEOH��DQG�VXFK�LQYDOLGLW\�VKDOO�QRW�DIIHFW�WKH�YDOLGLW\�RI�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�
SRUWLRQV�RI�WKLV�3ROLF\��ZKLFK�UHPDLQLQJ�SRUWLRQV�VKDOO�FRQWLQXH�LQ�IXOO�IRUFH�DQG�HIIHFW��

9,,���� ())(&7,9(�'$7(�

7KLV�$GYHUWLVLQJ�3ROLF\�LV�HIIHFWLYH�DV�RI�$SULO����������
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